
City Council Workshop Minutes October 27, 2008 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING 
Monday, October 27. 2008 

7:00 pm 
Andover Central Park Lodge 

Minutes 
 
 
Members Present 
Mayor Ben Lawrence, City Council Members Caroline Hale, Carol Roberts, 
Kevin Dreiling, Julie Reams, J.R. Jessen and Clark Nelson. 

Members Present  
 
 
 
Others 
 
 
 
Staff 
 
 
 
 
Terradyne IRB 
 

 
Others in attendance 
City Administrator Sasha Stiles, City Bond Council J.T. Klaus, City Financial 
Advisor Jeff Bridges, and Deputy City Clerk Susan Renner. 
 
Guests 
Craig Smith, Terradyne Hotel Partners, LLC, Therron Froggatte, Oppenheimer 
Company, and a large group of residents from the Terradyne Additions. 
 
Mayor Lawrence called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Mayor Lawrence explained the workshop meetings are informal, Mr. Smith and 
Mr. Froggatte will present their project, the Council will ask questions and 
consider the formal application and then all citizens will have an opportunity to 
speak. 
 
Therron Froggatte stated Craig Smith purchased the Terradyne County Club a few 
years back and is now interested in developing the land around the club.  He 
would like to build a nationally marketed conference center which they believe to 
be a nice addition to the area and the City of Andover.  They are asking the 
Council to consider Industrial Revenue Bonds in the amount of $15,000,000 with 
a ten (10) year - 100% tax abatement for the project.  Mr. Froggatte stated with 
the rise in material costs over the past two (2) years the tax abatement would 
allow the project to be feasible.  He added the track record of failure at the 
Terradyne Country Club was prior to Mr. Smith’s ownership and Mr. Smith has 
made a substantial investment in the area.   
 
Council Member Nelson stated some of the material presented with the 
application is outdated and an update would be required.   
 
Mr. Froggatte explained at this time they are looking for feasibility of the project 
prior to investing additional monies to update information. 
 
Council Member Nelson asked if anything had changed since holding a Terradyne 
Addition home owners meeting. 
 

 1  of  5



City Council Workshop Minutes October 27, 2008 

Mr. Smith stated it was decided a better location for the facility would be the west 
side of the club facility and the entrance would be from 159th Street.  The property 
will have to be re-zoned and re-platted.  Parking spaces would be one (1) per 
guest room and it would be directly west of the current parking lot.  Mr. Smith 
added these plans are not firm, their objective tonight is to determine if a tax 
abatement would be available, if available, they would invest additional funds to 
bring the reports current.   
 
Mr. Smth stated the $15,000,000 would keep them from being short of funds to 
build the facility.  A more accurate number would be available when the design 
phase begins.  Mr. Smith stated if the project failed the City would be the owner 
until it was paid off and he would personally guarantee the funds to pay off.  Mr. 
Smith stated he understands the citizens concerns but believes the project would 
be good for the area.   
 
Council Member Hale lives in the Terradyne Addition stated she understands the 
concerns.  She has been hearing “do we need another hotel”? when in 2005 they 
were closing up the guest rooms at Terradyne.     
 
Mr. Smith explained the focus of this project is the business conference market, 
transient guests would be minimal.  There is not a facility within 500 miles 
offering this type of services.  National hotel companies, Marriott, Hilton, etc., 
market specific corporate conference services to companies.   
 
Mayor Lawrence stated that the City’s policy traditionally has not favored 
abatement to retail establishments.   He added there is a way to accomplish what 
they are asking for but the 100% abatement for 10 years is steep.  Any 
consideration the Council will give would be well defined with stipulations and 
conditions attached.   
 
Council Member Dreiling asked Mr. Smith to provide some comparable facility 
information and websites that the Council and citizens could explore.  Mr. Smith 
stated he would email the information to Ms. Stiles. 
 
Citizen comments: 
 
Susan Dotson, 654 Glendevon Court, does not want a hotel in the neighborhood.  
She is concerned about traffic and the quality of life in the neighborhood. 
 
Tammy Cairns, 635 Glendevon Way, is concerned about the pool and safety 
issues for the children in the neighborhood. 
 
John Lehecka, 645 Glendevon Court, is concerned with strangers walking thru the 
neighborhood. 
 
Andrei Yushko, 1609 Gleneagles Court, agrees with the previous comments. 
 

 

Sam Bruner, 1206 Terradyne Court, is concerned about the loss of security and 
character of the community.   

2  of  5



City Council Workshop Minutes October 27, 2008 

 
Bill Downs, 23 Bramerton, is concerned with safety and traffic issues.   
 
Tim Buchanan, 816 Terradyne, realizes there are issues with the pool location, 
entrance location, lighting issues, etc. but is in favor of the project and the 
abatement. 
 
Gail Mayfield, 912 Terradyne Circle, is concerned with a loss of safety and 
increased traffic.  She believes the facility should have it’s own pool to keep 
guests away from the neighborhood pool. 
 
Dave Mayfield, 912 Terradyne Circle, is concerned a hotel in a residential area 
will effect property values.   
 
Michael Kimminau, 1002 Terradyne Circle, believes it will disrupt the character 
of the residential neighborhood.   
 
Tim Wasinger, 1613 Gleneagles, is the current President of the Terradyne 2nd 
Addition Home Owners Association stated there are concerns with lighting.  He 
would like to see Terradyne Drive gated closed and hotel access from 159th Street.    
 
Patricia Horning, 1608 W Gleneagles Court, is concerned with the loss of safety 
and freedom and an increase in traffic.  She does not want her children in the pool 
or fitness center with hotel guests. 
 
Jon Horning, 1608 W Gleneagles Court, stated his concerns with safety and the 
with the current economy.   
 
Cheryl Yavornitzki, 720 N 18th Fairway, stated this is a change of promise from 
one sort of community to another.  She believes there should be more concern 
with safety and with the bridge and condition of 159th Street.   
 
Mark Chaffin, 1514 W Highlander, stated his concerns are with safety and 
property values. 
 
Bob Bowman, 1612 W Highlander, stated his concerns for safety and property 
value.   
 
Janine Porter, 1142 Terradyne, stated her concerns with safety and the use of the 
pool by hotel guests. 
 
Greg Gough, 1128 Terradyne, stated his concerns for property value but added 
Terradyne Country Club needs to be profitable or what would happen if the golf 
course went public.   
 
Betty Byfield, 613 Glendevon Place, stated she hates to see a hotel disturb the 
community. 
 

 3  of  5



City Council Workshop Minutes October 27, 2008 

Annette Jacobson, 1612 Gleneagles Court, stated her concerns with safety at the 
pool and walking without sidewalks with the additional traffic. 
 
Brian Dotson, 654 Glendevon Court, stated he believes the original presentation 
for townhomes, houses, a practice range, and a golf academy is the best use of the 
property.   
 
Steve Webb, 721 Bramerton, stated his safety concerns with hotel guests use of 
the pool.  He is against a tax abatement. 
 
Melinda Fritze, 804 Bramerton, stated she believes that the condition of 159th 
Street should be addressed before anything else. 
 
Paul Hanneman, 1204 W Terradyne, stated he is undecided, but knows Terradyne 
Country Club has to be profitable. 
 
Farnosh Abid, 1111 Terradyne Place, stated his concerns for property values.   
 
Wanda Lewis, 715 Glendevon Way, stated her concerns for property values. 
 
Kirk (Happ) Asmann, 1212 Terradyne Drive, stated he understood others 
concerns.  Not sure the hotel is right but supports Craig Smith’s decision.   
 
Dwight Wallace, 648 Glendevon Place, President Terradyne 1st Addition HOA, 
stated he supports a hotel in the area. 
 
Mark Staal, 1008 Terradyne Circle, stated nothing is guaranteed forever.  Zoning 
will address citizen concerns. 
 
Nancy Staal, 1008 Terradyne Circle, wants the developer to make sure the family 
atmosphere and safety continues. 
 
Mayor Lawrence thanked everyone for coming to the meeting.  The decision will 
be made in the next few weeks and they will be notified when and where. 
 
The Council took a five (5) minute recess. 
 
The Council discussed the future of building a new City Hall and the direction the 
City should move in this matter.  Mayor Lawrence would like to see the budget go 
from $6 to $5 million.   

Gossen Livingston 
Proposal for City Hall 
Design 

 
Sasha Stiles stated the City has reliably grown 5% a year for the past ten years. 
 
It was decided Mayor Lawrence, City Administrator Sasha Stiles, City Financial 
Advisor Jeff Bridges, and City Bond Council J.T. Klaus will meet to discuss the 
next step before contacting the architects Gossen Livingston. 
 
 
 

 4  of  5



City Council Workshop Minutes October 27, 2008 

Sasha Stiles stated staff is considering closing of the brush pile at the City’s 
compost site.  The service is being abused with trash and limbs larger than 
accepted and staff is having to burn the pile instead of chipping.  Pictures of the 
dumpsite were presented to the Council.  She added the Butler County Landfill 
accepts limbs and yard waste at no charge but it must be free of trash. 

Compost Site at the Waste 
Water Plant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adjourn 

 
The Council agreed the staff should choose a date to close and make sure the 
information of the closing due to misuse is published to the community.   
 
A motion was made by Council Member Jessen, seconded by Council Member 
Reams, at 10:16 p.m. to adjourn.  Motion carried 6/0 
 
Respectfully Submitted by 
Susan C. Renner 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
Approved this 11th of November, 2008 by the City Council, City of Andover. 

 5  of  5


